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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of BLS Kendras Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BLS Kendras Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to note no 54 to the financial statements that the contract between the Company and
the Punjab e- Governance Society (PSeGS), executed on July 27, 2018, has reached to end of its contract
period from November 27, 2023. This contract was the only major source of revenue for the Company.
However, the management is making efforts to secure further contracts/business in the Company and is
of the view that going concern assumption is not affected. We have relied upon the management's
contention. : :

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The above information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusions thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

‘When we read other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions n the basis of these financial statements.

Page 2 of 12

»v ¥
Plot No. 68, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-Iil, New oelh'mw
Tel: +91-11-4670 8688 E-mail: info@sskmin.com ceon www.sskmin.com




\ 5S KOTHARI MEHTA
\ &COLLP

[ A

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judpment and maintan professional
skepticism throughout the andit, We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error; as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 ‘and 4 of the Order.

B. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanatlons which to the best of our knowledge
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!n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
1t appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph C (vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the cash
flow statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the paragraph B(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph C(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

During the year, the Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its director. Accordingly,
reporting requirement under the provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iil. There were no amounts which were requxred to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protectlon
Fund by the Company;

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to or in any other person or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirect d or invest in other persons or entities identified in
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any manuner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company to or in any other person or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner Whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (i1) of Rule 11 (¢), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement;

v. No dividend has been declared or paid by the Company during the year ending March 31, 2024;

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operating for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software after implementation of audit trail in accounting software. However, due to the
inherent limitation of the accounting software, we are unable to comment whether there were any
instances of the audit trail feature been tempered during the audit period (refer note. 56 of the financial
statements).

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 00075 500441

¢ g

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership Number: 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2024
UDIN: 24500607BKEIWKS8316
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of BLS Kendras Private Limited
(herein after referred to as “the Company”) dated May 10, 2024 on it’s Financial Statements.

Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (“the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph A of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section.

(i)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(i)(@)(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(1)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified every year. In
accordance with this programme, property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(1)(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records, there are no immovable property, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

(1)(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued any of
its property, plant and equipment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(i)(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and records provided, no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

(ii)(@) The Company does not have any inventory. Hence, provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i1)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks
or financial institutions during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has granted unsecured loans to company in respect of
which the requisite information is as below.. The Company has not made investments or provided any

feesin the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
ership during the year.

companies, other parties, firm or limited lizk
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a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has given loans to its holding company which is as below:

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during Loan (Rs. In Lakhs)
the year
- Holding Company (BLS E-éervices Limited) 33.24
Balance outstanding (including opening balance) 364.20
as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Holding Company (BLS E-Services Limited)

(iii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans during the year are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(iii)(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated. There has been no default on the part of the party to whom the
money has been lent. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

(iii)(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans
given and advances in the nature of loan given.

(1ii)(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due
during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to same parties.

(iii)(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, in respect of loans, guarantees and security given by the Company, in our opinion the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act have been complied with.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Accordmg to the information and explanatlons given to us, the Central Government has not
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(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the financial year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(vii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the financial year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (ix) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or government authority.

(ix)(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix)(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for
long term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer

(including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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(x)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

(xi)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us during the year, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the notes of the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions
of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiv)(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report under
clause 3 (xiv) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred in
section 192 of the Act.

(xvi)(a) According tol the information and explanations given to us, tﬁe provisions of section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(xvi)(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requuement to report on clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xvi)(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated
whether the information provided by the mana t is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the
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(W) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(\vit) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
requirement (o report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(Xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 39 to the financial Statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
1 not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all hiabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in compliance with second proviso to sub-

section 5 of section 135 of the Act.

(xx) (b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section 6 of section 135 of the Act.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of the financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accoyntants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: OOOTZZ%POMI

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership Number: 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2024
_UDIN: 24500607BKEIWKS8316
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Anncxure B to the Independent Auditors® Report to the BLS Kendras Private Limited (herein after
referred to as “the Company”) dated May 10, 2024 on it’s financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
as referred to in paragraph B(g) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of BLS Kendras
Private Limited (the ‘Company’) as of March 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to Financial
Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, ix},\ 150 detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
,Q_m Page 11 of 12
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 000756N/N500441

ok G

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership Number: 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2024
UDIN: 24500607BKEIWKS8316
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2024

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note e S Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
ASSETS
1 Non-current asset
a. Property, plant & equipment 3 0.36 0.54
b. Right of use assets 4 - 15.11
c. Finanrial assets:
(i) Other financial assets 5 584.10 541.26
d. Deferred tax assets(net) 6 0.10 299
e. Non current tax assets (net) 7 111.53 19.89
Total non current assets 696.09 579.79
2 Current asset
a. Financial assets
(i) Investment 8 -
(ii) Trade Receivable 9 87.62 -
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 410.05 36642
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 11 4.10 1,105.10
(v) Other financial assets 12 59.96 38.61
b. Other current assets 13 192.52 87.54
Total current assets 754.25 1,597.67
TOTAL ASSETS 1,45034 217746
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 Equity
a. Equity share capital 14 50.00 50.00
b. Other equity 15 1,256.24 1,225 A5
‘l'otal equity 1,306.24 1,275.65
Linbilitics
2 Non-current liabilities
a. Provisions 16 - 8.79
Total non-current liabilities - 8.79
3 Current liabilities
a. Financial liabllities
(i) Lease Liabilities 17 - 16.78
(ii) Trade payables 18
Dues o micro enlerprises and siall enlerprises
Dues to creditor other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18.48 18.31
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 12495 752.71
b. Other current liabilities 20 0.67 104.0Y
L. Pruvisivu 21 - 0.53
Total enrrent Hahilities 144,10 uv3.02
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIADILITICS 1,450 04 0,1 TTAG
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1-2 .

The arcompanying notes referred tn ahave formed an intepral part of the financial statements

AS per our report of even date attached

For § S Kothari Mehta & Co, LLP
Chartered Acconnrants

IMrm'u IUQE:::'DMI-l Q00TEGM, MEOO 1L

For and on behalt ot the board of directors of
BLS Kendras Privale Limiled

%\p@% fo

AMIT GOEL Dinesh Sharma : §anjeev Kumar
Partner Director Director
Maomberchip number: 500607 NIN N NNASARAN NIN Nn N?R?AT73

Plarw - Near Dllii
Date : May 10, 2024



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
[ Revenue from operations 22 4,405.42 7,539.42
[I Otherincome 23 114.11 62.21
II1 TOTAL INCOME(I+II) 4,519.53 7,601.63
IV EXPENSES:
Cost of services 24 3,181.47 4,862.15
Employee benefits expense 25 104.25 142.96
Finance cost 26 6.53 20.66
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 15.29 21.48
Other expenses 28 1,165.67 1,716.50
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,473.21 6,763.76
V PROFIT BEFORE TAX (III-1V) 46.32 837.87
V1 TAX EXPENSE:
a) Current tax 13.56 211.78
b) Deferred tax 6 2.89 0.29
c) Tax for earlier years (0.72) (1.19)
TOTAL TAX EXPENSES 15.73 210.88
VIl PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (V-VI) 30.59 626.99
VIl OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurements of defined benefit plans - 1.50
(b) Less: Tax on Re-measurements of defined benefit plans - (0.38)
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1.12
[X TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (VII+VIII) 30.59 628.11
¥ Farnings per equity sharedhagie and diloted (N9) ] n17 125 40
X1 Corporate information and material accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes referred to above formed an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accqunt

aft
Firm's regisfration vg:zber: 000756N/N50044

A

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership number: 500607

Place : New Delhi

/

Date : May 10, 2024

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
BLS Kendras Private Limited

o

Dinesh Sharma

Director

DIN No. 00956860

njeev Kumar

Director
DIN No. 02826773



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
[ ow from operating activities
Profit before tax 46.32 837.87
Adjustments for
Depreciation & amortization expense 15.29 21.48
Finance costs 6.53 20.66
(Profit)/loss on sale of investment in mutual fund (4.53)
[nterest income on fixed deposit and loan (99.61) (60.67)
Operating profit before working capital change (36.00) 819.34
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (87.62) 0.14
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial current assets (2.63) 8.73
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current assets (104.98) 9.44
(Increase)/ Decrease in non current financial asset - 0.81
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial non-current assets 9.14 (0.41)
(Decrease)/ Increase in long term provision (8.79) (1.84)
(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payable 017 (9.24)
(Decrease)/ Increase in other financial current liabilities (627.77) (217.67)
(Decrease)/ Increase in other current liabilities (104.02) 33.24
(Decrease)/ Increase in current provision (0.53) 1.40
Cash flow from operations (963.03) 643.94
Direct taxes paid (net) (104.47) (202.98)
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) (1,067.50) 440.96
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment - (0.81)
Loan (given)/received 154.55 (518.75)
Purchase of investments (1,489.83) D
Sale of investments 1,494.36 Z
Proceeds/(Investment) in term deposits 900.00 79.88
Interest income from fixed deposit and loan 75.36 149.21
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 1,134.44 (290 47)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/(Payments) from current borrowings - (150.00)
Addition/(Repayment) of lease liabilities (17.42) (22.40)
Interest paid (5.89) (19.47)
Net cash Flow from/ (used in) financing activities (C) (23.31) (191.87)
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) 43.63 (41.38)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 366.42 407.80
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year(refer note 10) 410.05 366.42
Components of cash and cash equivalent
Current accounts 9.05 319.86
Fixed deposit with original maturity of upto 3 month 101.00 -
Cach on hond nnn Ah
Total cash and cash equivalent 410.05 366.42
Notes:

(2) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS
7)- Statement of Cash Flows.

CATTIOTITT T LT ITEITO Tl Miseling Malains
Particulars as at April 01,2023 | inflow/(ontflows) | as at March 31, 2024
Current borrowing - -
Non-Current borrowing - -
Opening Balance Cash Closing Balance
Particulars as at April 01,2022 | inflow/(outflows) [as at March 31, 2023
Current borrowing S 150.00 (150.00) -
Non-Current borrowing -
Lorpordte information and Material accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes referred to above formed an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the hnard of directors of
For S 5 Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP BLS Kendras Private Limited
Chartered Accourftakts \\:
Fitm's tegistatidu nurmber; 000756N/N50

AN
A GOEL Dinesh Sharma =~ Sanjeev Kumar
Partner Director Director

Membership number: 500607 DIN No. 00956860 DIN No. 02826773

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2024



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2022 50.00
Changes in equity shares capital during the year 5

As atMarch 31, 2023 50.00
Changes in equity shares capital during the year -

As at March 31, 2024 50.00

B. Other Equity

Particulars Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at April 01, 2022 (a) 597.54 597.54
Addition during the year:

Profit for the year 626.99 626.99
Other Comprehensive Income 1.12 1.12
Total compreshensive income for the year 2022-23 (b) 628.11 62811
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (c)= (a+b) 1,225.65 1,225.65
Addition during the year:

Profit for the year 30.59 30.59
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total compreshensive income for the year 2023-24 (d) 30.59 30.59
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (e) =(c+d) 1,256.24 1,256.24
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes referred to above formed an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP BLS Kendras Private Limited
Charrered Accounrtants
Firm's registratiomumber: 000756N/N500441 \\

.

\})}) o _ ;»//V“/

|
\ _—
4 Dinesh Sharma ¢ Sanjeev Kumar

AMIT GOEL
Partner » ¢ ol Director Director
Membership number: 500607 W’?' DIN No. 00956860 DIN No. 02826773

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2024



BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

1 Corporate information
BLS Kendra's Private Limited is a private company incorporated in India under Indian Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The registered
office is located at G-4B-1, Extension, Mohan Co-operative Indl. Estate Mathura Road New Delhi.

The Punjab Sewa Kendra (PSK) -Which is an e-governance project- was awarded to the company by Punjab State government to
provide citizen Services with the setting up of Sewa Kendras across the state.

These financial statements were approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 10, 2024

2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Material accounting policies
2.a Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance :
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and relevant provisions of the Act as amended.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use

(ii) Basis of Preparation:
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting

except for financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the
accounting policy set out below:

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the

scope of Ind AS 116 - Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in
Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assets.

The financial statements are presentation in Indian Rupees (Rs) and all the values are rounded off to the lakhs, except number of
shares, earning per share or wherever otherwise stated.

(iii) Functional & Presentation Currency:
ltems inciuded in the financial statements ot the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the Company operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (‘INR"),
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(iv) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the nse nfassumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are

reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

(v) Current & Non current classification:

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

I9\ V&///’//




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

2 b. Material Accounting Policies for the year ended March 31,2024
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the financial statements.

(a) Revenuerecognition
Rendering of Services

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing Citizens services through Sewa Kendras of Punjab State E Governance Society
which are operationally controlled, maintained and Managed by the company.

The Company also provide a list of various related value added services like Courier, Domestic Money Transfer , Aadhar card etc.

Revenue from services is recognized upon receipt of money from applicants in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
company receive in exchange for the services rendered.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities

Other Income
(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income ig accountod for when the right to receive the dividend is established.

(iii) Rental Income

Income from sub let of property 1s recogmsed on accrual basis in accordance wilh sub-lel agreement.

(iv) Profit/(loss) on salc of PPL/Investment

Profit/(loss) on sale of PPE/Investment is recognised in profit and loss account at the time of sale of PPE/Investment.

(b) Property Plant and Equipment

Prupeily, plantand equlpiient are carrled gt historical cost of acquisition, less accumulatea depreciation . Lost incliides purchase price
and also other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capiralized only when it is prabable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the costs to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance
rosts are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gain or losses are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Depredallun ls provided v wiltien dowie value anethod over the useiul lives of property, plant dnd equipment as estmated by
management. Depreciation is provided prorata basis on written down value at the rates determined based on estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment where applicable, prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Act. The residual value, useful lifes and method of

depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial vear and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The useful
lile ol various class ol items considered in the financial statements is as under:

Class ot assets Usetul life (in years)
(‘llttl'll”l—'l 2

(#)  Tolangible Assely

Intangihle Assets are recognised, when it is probable that if the futurc cconomic bencfits attributable to the assets are cxpected to flow
to the company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The usclul lives of intangible assels are assessed as either finile or
indefinite. Intangible asset with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the infangihle asset may he impaired The amartisatinn period and the amortisation method for an intangible aszet
with a finiee useful life are revicwed al least al Lhie end ul eauli vepon g pe ol Ticdnglble dssews wlch lndeflnlie uselul Hves are nut
amortised, but are tested for impaninent annually, vither individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinire
life is reviewed annually to determine whether Lhe indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised

(d) Impairment
The carrying amount of Property, plant and cquipment's, Intangible assets and Investment property are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date to assess impairment if any, based on internal / external factors. An asset is treated as impaired, when the carrying cost of
asset exceeds its recoverable value, being pighetdf¥alie in use and net selling price. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in tie&ear in white] An asset s identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior

accounting period is reversed, if there ement in recoverable amount. \
O




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

(e) Financial Instruments
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
Financial assets

Financial assets include Investments, Trade receivables, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances and Other
Financial assets.

At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. Such financial assets are subsequently classified under following
three categories according to the purpose for which they are held. The classification is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal amount
outstanding on specified dates. These financial assets are intended to be held until maturity. Therefore, they are subsequently
measured at amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
The EIR amartisation is included as interest income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Financial Assets at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal amount
outstanding on specified dates, as well as held for selling. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair
value, with all fair value movements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate (EIR) methed, impairment gain or loss and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from
the OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets at Fair value through Profit or Loss
At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are held for trading, or which are measured neither at Amortised Cost nor at fair value

through OCI. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances and Other Financial assets are classified for
measurement at amortised cost while investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular
investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at
initial recognition may be made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial assct (or a group of financial assets) such as investments, trade
Fecelvables, advances and secunity deposits held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit quality of the financial asset has deteriorated
significantly since initial recognition.

De-recognilion

Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all af the risks and rewards nf
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Liabililies

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initiallv recognised af the valie of the respertive rantractinal nhligations

They are subseguenlly measured al amortsed cost. Any discount or premuium on redemption / settlement is recognised in the
Statetrent of Profic and Loss as hnance cost over the lite of the lability using the effective interest method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the rarrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the short maturity of these instruments.
Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right

to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PT(C331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amountin (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

U]

(g)

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair values for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 - This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.derived from prices).

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreclated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated nseful life af the asset

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future

payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of all assets that have a lease

term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. When the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. For operating le income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of relevant lease.
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(h)

(i)

(i

Employee Benefits

i. Provident Fund & Employee State Insurance

The Company makes contribution to statutory provident fund and employee state insurance fund in accordance with Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee State Insurance Act, 1948 which is a defined contribution plan
and contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which services are rendered by the employee.

ii. Gratuity
Gratuity is a post employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets,

together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is
determined by actuarial valuation as on the balance sheet date, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

iii. Other short term benefits

Expense in respect of other short term benefit is recognised on the basis of amount paid or payable for the period during which
services are rendered by the employee.

Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per equily share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number ol equily shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the welghted average
number of cquity shares that could have heen issned upon conversion of all dilutive patential equity shares The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market
value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless
issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share

splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of
Directors.

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year after taking credit of the
Leuelils dvdlldble under the lincote Tax Act and any adjustment to the tax payable or recelvable in respect of previous years. It 1s
measured using tax rates enacted or suhstantively enarted ar the repnrting date

Current tax azsats and liabilities w e offsel vuly il Ui Company:

i) has alegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
if) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assels or liabilitics in a transaction that [s not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nov laaable profit vi luss; aud

it) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, assodiates and juint arrangements W tie extent tat tie Cotpany is

able to control the timing ol tie 1eversal uf the tewpurary differences dud [0 s probable tiac tiey will noe reverse ndie Toresesable
future.

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is prahahle that future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the

probability of future taxable profits improves.
YA W/‘/
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
i) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

i) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same
taxable entity.

(k) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a
part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing cost consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing cost are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(1) Cash & Cash Equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(m) Provisions, Contingent Assets & Contingent Liabilities:

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of
facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes. Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial
statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(n) Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are

segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

(p) Operating Segments
(i) Identification of segments
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services

provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves dilferent markets. The
analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

(ii) Unallocated items
Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment.

(iii) Segment accounting policies

The Company preparcs its scgment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
tinancaal statements of the Company as a whole.

/ e 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

2.c Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates & Assumptions

a)

b)

c)

d)

2.d

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates, assumptions and
judgements which have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statement:

Income taxes
Judgment of the Management is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The

company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from
actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone financial statements.

Contingencies

Judgment of the Management is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not collectible. Impairment is
made on ECL, which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future.
These Includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. There are no such recently issued standards or amendments to the
existing standards for which the impact on the Financial Information is required to be disclosed.

N //7”
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Computers
Particulars Amount
Gross Block
As at April 01, 2022 6.72
Additions 3
Disposals ”
As at March 31,2023 6.72
Additions =
Disposals =
As at March 31,2024 6.72
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01,2022 5.62
Charge for the year 0.56
Disposals
Asar March 11,2023 06.18
Charge for the yea 0.18
Disposals
Ao at March 31,2024 b.d6
Net block as at March 31,2023 - 0.54
Net hlnck as at March 31, 2074 0.36

4 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Particulars Amount
Gross Block
As at April 01, 2022 55.35
Additions 0.81
Hiapnisals
As at March 31,2023 56.16
Additions
Disposals :
As at March 31, 2024 56.16
Accumulated Amortisation
As at April 01, 2022 20.13
Charge for the year 2092
Nisposals
As at March 31,2023 41.05
Chiarge lor the year 15.11
Rirpanals -
As at March 31,2024 56.16
Net block as at March 31, 2023 15.11

Net block as at March 31, 2024
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5

Other financial assets: non current

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Carried at amortised cost
Security deposits 9.14
Fixed deposit having a remaining maturity period
of more than twelve months* <0100
Loan & advances# 364.20 518.75
Interestaccrued on fixed deposit 18.90 13.37
Total 584.10 541.26
# Balance with related parties (refer note 35)

"BLS E -Service Limited (Formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) 364.20 518.75
*Pledge against Bank Guarantee as on March'2024 Rs. 201.00 Lakhs (March' 2023 NIL)
Deferred tax asset & (liabilities) (Net)

i Asat (Charge)/credit for Asat
rarticnlyrs March 31,2024 the year March 31,2023
Deferred tax liability on account of
Timing difference on depreciation and amortisation 0.10 (0.08) 0.18
Timing difference on right of use assets - 3.81 (3.81)
Total deferred tax liability (A) 0.10 3.72 (3.63)
Deferred tax asset on account of
Timing difference on gratuity - (2.35) 2.35
Timing difference on lease liability (4.23) 423
Timing difference on preliminary expenses - (0.04) 0.04
Total deferred tax asset (B) (6.62) 6.62
Deferred tax Asset (Net) (B+A) 0.10 (2.89) 2.99

: Asat  (Charge)/credit for As at
i March 31, 2023 the year March 31, 2022
Deferred tax liability on account of
Timing difference on depreciation and amortisation 0.18 (0.07) 0.25
Timing difference on right of use assets (381) 5.06 (8.87)
Total deferred tax liability (A) (3.63) 4.99 (8.62)
Deferred tax asset on account of
Timing difference on gratuity 235 (0.49) 2.84
Timing difference on lease liability 423 (5.17) 9.40
Timing difference on preliminary EXPENSES 0.04 - 0.04
Total deferred tax asset (B) 6.62 (5.66) 12.28
Deferred tax Asset (Net) (B+A) 2.99 (0.67) 3.66
Non current tax assets
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31. 72073
Advance incame tav and tar doducted at sour e, (et ul pruvislon of ncome tay) 11153 19.09
‘Total 111.03 14 H#Y
Investments
Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2024

Investment carried at fair value through profitand loss (Quoted)
Total

Trade recelvables

March 31,2023

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Trade receivables 87.62 "

Unbilled revenue &

Total 87.62
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10

11

12

13

Ageing for trade receivables- outstanding as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years L
months
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 8762 ) : 87.62
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered )
Doubtful ) ) 2
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good ) ) ) =
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered }
doubtful ) ) -
Less: Allowance for doubtful
trade receivables ) ) i :
Total Trade receivables 87.62 - - 87.62
Ageing for trade receivables- outstanding as on March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particalars ResEIuang 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Tokd
months
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered i
good ) ) ) )
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered
Doubtful ) )
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good ) ) )
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered }
doubtful = z - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful
trade receivables
Total Trade receivables . E = = P
Cash and cash equivalents
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Balance with banks:
Current account 9.05 319.86
Cash on hand 0.00 46.56
Fixed deposit with original maturity of upto 3 month 401.00 *
Tutal 410.05 366.42
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Fixed deposit having a remaining maturity period
of more than three month but less than twelve 4.10 1,105.10
months.*
Total 4.10 1,105.10
*Pledge against Bank Guarantee as on March' 2024 NIL (March'2023 Rs. 201.00 Lakhs)
Other Financial Assets
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Security deposit - Current 0.32 (0.52)
Advance to employees 0.44 0.93
Security deposit receivable 0.10 0.10
Wallet” 4.96 2.68
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 21.63 -
Interest accrued on Loan to E-services* 3251 35.42
Total 59.96 38.61
Balance with related parties (refer note 35)
*BLS E -Services Limited (formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) 3251 3542
"BLS E -Services Limited [formerlv known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) 0.54 0.50
Other Current assets
; As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 172.06 68.37
Advance against material & services 0.37 9.69
Prepaid expenses 7.77 8.55
Other receivable 12.32 0.93
Total 192.52 87.54

S
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14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITTAL

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

Asat March 31,2023

Authorized Share Capital

500,000 (March 31, 2023: 500,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50.00 50.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

500,000 (March 31, 2023: 500,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50.00 50.00

Total 50.00 50.00

a.) Reconciliation of the number of shares

As atMarch 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Particulars

Number of shares Amount in Rs. Number of shares Amount in Rs.
Balance as at the beginning of the year 5.00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00
Add: Changes in capital during the year - - - -
Balance as at the closing of the year 5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00

b.) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The
distribution will be in proportion of the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The dividend Proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the
Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of Interim Dividend.

C.) Numbers of shares held by holding company

Particulars

AsatMarch 31,2024

AsatMarch 31, 2023

Number of shares

% of holding in the class

Number of shares

% of holding in the class

Holding Company

BLS E-Services Limited (Formely known as BLS E-Services Private
Limited)*

5,00,000

100%

5.00,000

100%

d.) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

Asat March 31, 2023

Numiber vl shaies

% ol hwlding in e dass

Nuiubei ol shiaies

% of holding in the class

Equity shares of Rs.10 each

BLS E-Services Limited (Furmely Kinuwin as DLS E-Services Private
Limited)*

5,00,000

100%

5,00,000

100%;

* one share hold by nominee share holder

e). The Company has not issued any bonus shares and there is no buy back of shares in the current year and preceeding five vears

f.) Shareholding of promoters

The details of the shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2024 are as follow:
AsatMarch 31,2024
Particulars o ch during th
Number of shares| % of holding in the class Lk ﬂnf:n.:;mg €
B_LS_E-Scrwces Limited (Formely known as BLS E-Services Private 5,00,000 100%,
Limited)
The details of the shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023 are as follow:
AsatMarch 31,2023
Particulars a :
Number of shares| % nf halding in the class % change during the
period
R-I S F-Sarvices 1 imitad (Farmaly known 2 RIS F-Sanncar Priovte 5.00,000 100% 101104
Limited|

£.) As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received trom shareholders regarding heneficial inter

shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

he ahave
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15 Other Equity

icul As at As at
SACHCla March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Retained earnings 1,225.65 597.54
Add: Profit for the year 30.59 626.99
Total (a) 1,256.24 1,224.53
Other Comprehensive Income (0CI) (b) - 1.12
Balance of Retained Earning at the end of reporting period (a+b) 1,256.24 1,225.65

Description of nature and purpose of reserve

Retained Earning

Retained Earning are the profits that the company has earned till date less dividends (ifany) and distribution paid to share holders. Retained earning is a free

reserve available to the company

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans
This represents the actuarial gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income.

16 Provisions - Non- Current

Particul As at As at
SR March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Provision for employee benefit (refer note 34) - 8.79
Total - 8.79
17  Lease Liabilties - Current
: As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities (refer note 38) - 16.78
Total - 16.78
18 Trade Payable
As at Asat

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

Dues to micro enterprises and smal] enterprises (refer note 33)

Dues to creditors other than micro en terprises and small enterprises 18.48 18.31
Total 18.48 18.31
_——_-'_'__—_ ——_—u—_“——
Ageing for trade payable outstanding as at March 31,2024 is as follows:
Outstanding for followin periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
¢ Less than 1yrs 1-2Zyr 2-3yr 3 yrs and more °
(i) MSME - = n z

ii) Others 18.48 . - 18.48
(iii) Diputed dues MSME - - -

iv) Diputed dues-Others - - -
Total 18.48 - 18.48
Ageing for trade payable outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Less than 1yrs 1-2yr 2-3yr 3 yrs and more
(i] MSME - -

il) Others 10801 & 18.31

1) Diputed dues MSMF. = = =

iv) Diputed dues-Others - - - -
Total . 18.31 - 18,31
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19

20

21

Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at hsat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Expenses payable 121.86 645.50
Payable to employees 2.85 17.08
Government fees payable 0.24 20.43
Wallet” 67.38
Payable to PSeGS - 232
Total 124.95 752.71
* Balance with related parties (refer note 35)
“BLS E -Services Limited (formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) - 67.88
Other Current Liabilities
- As at Asat
I
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Statutory dues payable 0.67 104.69
Total 0.67 104.69
Provision : Current
: As at As at
Particul
AR March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Provision for employee benefit (refer note 34) - 0.53

Total

0.53
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22

23

25

Z6

27

Z8

29

Revenue from operations

Particul Year ended Year ended
axticulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Sale of services 4,405.42 7.539.42
Total 4,405.42 7,539.42
Asat Asat

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a pointin time 4,405.42 7,539.42
Services transferred over period of time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 4,405.42 7,539.42
Contract Balance
Trade Receivable 87.62 -
Contract liabilities = =
Contract liabilities primarily relate to advance consideration received from
customers against supply of services for which revenue is recognised at a point
in time
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 4,405.42 753942
Less: Discount : R
Revenue Recognised 4,405.42 7,539.42
Other Income
Partiiiline Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March31,2023
Miscellaneous income 9.45 0.04
Profit on sale of investment 4.53 -
Interest on security deposit 052 0.40
Interest on fixed deposit 62.29 21.31
Interest Income on Loan 37.32 39.36
Interest Income on IT Refund - 1.10
Total 114.11 62.21
Cort of Fervicer
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March31,2023
Purchases 122.57 62.38
Operational Expenses 3INSR AN 479977
1otal 3,181.4/ 4,862.15
Employee benefit expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Salaries and wages, bonus etc. 101.43 141.03
Contribution to funds 0.94 252
Staff welfare expense 1.88 (0.59)
Total 104.25 142.96
Finance Cost
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2024

March 31,2023

Interest on borrowings* - 8.01
Interest on lease liability 0.64 1.84
Interest others 0.00 0.04
Other financials charges 5.89 10.77
Total 6.53 20.66
*Transaction with related parties (refer note 35)
BLS IT Services Private Limited - 8.01
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 0.18 0.56
Amortization on right of use assets 15.11 20.92
Total 15.29 21.48
Other Expenses
Particalars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Management consulting fee* 190.00 150.00
Rent expense 7.82 3.51
Printing & stationery expense 63.04 138.50
Software expense A 13.85 19.56
Legal & professional expenses (refey (é\ 17.72 98.14
Repair & maintenance expense- ot 5 56.51 80.62
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Sewa kendra expenses 58893 675.88
Vehicle running & maintenance expense 1.24 379
Business promotion expense - 21.19
Convevance & travelling expense 59.74 108.49
Balance written off 0.59 2112
Miscellaneous expense 2.79 2.67
Information Technology Exp* 36.00 148.00
CSR Expense (refer note 55) 10.00 -
Insurance expense 4.14 3.57
Bank charges 0.03 0.11
Total 1,165.67 1,716.50
*Transaction with related parties (refer note 35)

BLS E-Services Limited (formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited) 190.00 150.00
Starfin India Private Limited 36.00 148.00

29.1 Payment to auditors

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Statutory audit fees 1.00 3.00

Total 1.00 3.00

30 Earning Per Share (EPS)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Net loss after tax as per statement of profit and loss attributable to cquity

30.59 626.99
shareholders (Rs.)
t 3 E S 18 sde 1
Weigh ed average number of equity shares used as denominator for calenlating 500,000 5 BUUUY
basic EPS
Weighted average potential equity shares .
Total \vglghtt?d average number of equity shares used as denominator for £,00,000 5.00,000
calculating diluted EPS
Earning per share ( Basic & Diluted) 6.12 125.40
fare valine per eanity share (Rv) 10 n
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS ( TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)

< Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Guarantees issued by the bank on behalf of the Company 2,000.00 2,000.00

32 LEASES

The Gempany has talien premiscs for some office apace under canccllnble operating lcasc agreciments. Terma of the leasc
include terms for renewal, increase in rents in future periods and terms of cancellation.

Lease and rent payments recognised in statement of profit an loss amounting Rs. 7.81/- Lakhs (P.Y Rs.3.51 Lakhs)

an The Micrn, Small and Medinm Pnterprises Develapment (MSMED) Act, 20046
Based on the information available, there are no vendors who have confirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and
Wi l'IlN"ll\l ISHS U!‘VP'NIIIIH—'III AEE ZUHR THSEINSHIFBG dy l'l-‘llllll'i’l! n!i SHEFIAR 22 A TRe M‘f‘l‘ﬂ_ SHal ana Meniim
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, are given below:

Asat Asat

Particul
articulars March 11, 2024 March 31, 2023

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development Act,
2006 are provided as under w the extent the Lompany has recelved Intmation - =
firom the supplings cetandings i sbatus ander the Arl
Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the vear - =
Lulerest due Uiereon temdining unpaid al the end of the year - 5
Delayed payment of Principal amount paid beyond appointed date during the
entire financial year

Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the Act during the entire accounting
jyear
Amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making the
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) s -
but without adding interest specitied under this Act.

Amount of [nterest due and payable for the period (where principal has been
paid but interest under the MSMED Act not paid)

Interost accruod and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
Micro and Small Enterprises for the purpose of disallowances as deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of this Act

No parties have been identified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 other than disclosed
above. This disclosure has been determined t tsuch parties have been identified on the basis of information available C
with the Company.




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PT(C331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amountin (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

34, Employee Benefits

Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations:

: Year ended
Period March 31,2023
Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the period 11.26
Interest cost 0.82
Current service cost 1.70
Benefits paid (if any) (2.96)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (1.50)
Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 9.32
Bifurcation of total Actuarial (gain) /loss on liabilities

Year ended

Period

March 31,2023

Actuarial gain/ losses from changes in Demographics assumptions (mortality)

Not Applicable

Actuarial (gain)/ losses from changes in financial assumptions (0.16)
Experience Adjustment (gain)/ loss for Plan liabilities (1.34)
Total amount recognized inother comprehensive Income (1.50)
The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet
Povioi Year ended
erio March 31,2023
Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 9.32
Fair value of plan assets at end of period =
Net liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 932
Funded Status 9.32
Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss
Period Year ended
March 31,2023
Interest cost 0.82
Current service cost 1.70
Expected return on plan asset =
Expenses to be recognized in the statement of P&L accounts 2.52
Other comprehensive (income)/expenses (Remeasurement)

. Year ended
Egrog March 31,2023
Cumulative unrecognised actuarial (gain)/loss opening B/F (2.82)
Actuarial (guin)/losg obligation (1.50)
Actuarlal {gain)/loss  plan aaacts
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss (1.50)
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss .C/F (4.32)
Net Interest Cost
leriod _ Year ended

March 31,2023
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 0.82
Interest income on plan assets -
Net Interest cost(income) 0.82

AN




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Experience Adjustment

. Year ended
Period March 31,2023
Experience Adjustment (Gain)/loss for Plan liabilities (1.34)
Experience Adjustment Gain/ (loss) for Plan assets -
Summary of membership data at the date of valuation and statistics based thereon:

. Year ended
Period March 31,2023
Number of employees 11
Total monthly salary 457
Average Past Service(Years) 4.00
Average remaining working lives of employees(Years) 15.50
Average Age(years) 42.50
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) in years 13.00
Average monthly salary 0.42

The assumptions employed for calculations are tabulated:

Discount rate

7.50 % per annum

Salary Growth Rate 5.00 % per annum
Mortality IALM 2012-14
Expected rate of return -
Withdrawal Rate (per annum) 5.00 % p.a.
Benefits valued:

Normal Retirement Age 58 Years

Salary

Last drawn qualifying salary

Vesting Period

5 Years of service

Benefits on Normal Retirement

15/26*Salary*Past Service (yr)

Benefit on early exit due to death and disability

As above except that no vesting conditions

apply

Limit

20.00

Current Liability (*Itis probable outlay in next 12 months as required by the Companies Act) :

Perioa

Year ended
March 31,2023

Period

Current Liability (Short Term) 0.53
Non Current Liability (Long Term) 8.79
Total Liability 9.33
Sensitivity Analysis :

Year ended

March 31,2023

Defined benefit obligation (Base)

9.32 lakh @ salary increase rate : 5 % and

discountrate : 7.50%

Liability with x % increase in Discount rate

8.60 lakh; x=1.00% [ change (8)%)]

Liability with x % decrease in Discount rate

10.14 lakh; x=1.00% [ change 9%]

Liability with x % increase in salary growth rate

10.15 lakh; x= 1.00% [ change 9%]

Liability with x % decrease in salary growth rate

8.57 lakh; x=1.00% [ change (8)%]

Liability with x % increase in withdrawal rate 9.42 lakh; x=1.00% [ change 1%]
Liability with x % decrease in withdrawal rate 9.21 lakh; x=1.00% [ change (1)%]

Maturity Profile of projected benefit obligation: from the fund

M
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

2nd Following Year 0.26
3rd Following Year 0.30
4th Following Year 0.26
5th Following Year 0.26
After 5 Years 7.71

Note: There is no employee as on the date of balance sheet. Accordingly the disclosure for the period ended March, 2024 has not been

presented




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

35

A)

B)

Ind AS 24 Related Par!| isclosures

Ultimate Holding Company
BLS International Services Limited

Holding Company

BLS E-Services Limited (formerly known as BLS E-Services Private Limited (w.e.f October 31, 2022)

C) Fellow Subsidiaries
BLS IT- Services Private Limited#
BLS E- Solutions Private Limited#
Reired BLS International Services Private Limited#
Starfin India Private Limited*
ZeroMass Private Limited*
BLS International FZE, UAE#
BLS International Services, UAE*
BLS International Services Canada INC.A
BLS International Services Norway AS* (till March 29, 2024)
BLS International Services Singapore PTE LTD.*
BLS International Services (UK) Limited*
Consular Outsourcing BLS Services Inc.(USA)*
BLS International Vize Hizmetleri Ltd. Sti.(Turkey)”*
BLS International Services Limited (Hongkong)*
PT. BLS International Service, Indonesia (w.e.fFeb21,2023)*
Balozi Liaison Services International Limited(kenya) (w.e.f 01 April' 2022)~
BLS International Services SRL (ltaly) (w.e.f. April 01,2022)**
BLS International Services Malaysia SDN BHD*
BLS International Employee Welfare Trust#
BLS Worldwide PTY Limited (South Africa)”
BLS International Cameroon Limited, Cameroon (w.ef Aug 11, 2023)»
BLS Mor Services, Morocco®
BLS Services worldwide Limited, Nigeria (w.e.f]an 23, 2023)»
BLS International Travel & Tourism, Saudi Arabia (w.e.f May 11,2023)*
BLS Kazakhstan, Kazakhstan *
BLS International USA Inc*(w.e.f January 31’ 2024)
~ Subeidiary of BLS International TZE
* Subsidiary of BLS E-Services Limited
" Gubsidiary ol DL3 luwet nduondl services (UK) Limited
# Subsidiary companies of BLS International Services Limited
D) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Designation
Mr. Dinesh Sharma Director
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Director
Ms. Shivani Mishra Director
Mr. Abhinav Goel Director
E) action and balances with related parties during the Year
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of busincss:
Particulars Nature of Transaction As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
1 |BLS International Services Limited Reimbursement of expenses 45.46 =
Reimbursement of expenses (Received) (45.46) -
Other payables(Paid) - 169.60
Closing Balance E
Off balance sheet items
Performance bank guarantee taken 2,000.00 2,000.00
2 |BLS IT Services Private Limited Loan paid (150.00)
Rental income - 0.72
Other receivable (received) 10.19 2.10
Reimbursement of expenses 9.88 -
Interest expense - 8.01
Closing Balance
Balance receivable - 0.31
3 |BLS E-Services Limited (Formerly known as BLS E-Services Loan given 33.24 1,836.25
Private Limited) Loan recovered (187.79) (1,317.51)
Other payable (received) 86.76 z
Wallet transactions 126.00 61.25
Interest Income 37.32 39.36
Other Expense 190.00 150.00

)\’\

N\




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

Other payable - (164.94)
Other payable (Paid) 291.96 (4.64)
Revenue from operation 122.19 61.32
Cost of services 16.07 7.24
Closing Balances:
Interest receivables 32.51 3542
Loan Recoverable 364.20 518.75
Wallet payable = 67.88
Wallet receivable 0.54
4 |BLSE Solutions Private Limited Rental Income - 0.72
Reimbusrement of Expense 0.22 0.99
Balance Receivables (received) 0.85 0.23
Closing Balances:
Balance Receivable - 0.62
5 [Starfin India Private Limited Balance Payable (Paid) 159.81 243.89
Information technology Expense 36.00 148.00
Other receivable [Received) 45.00 -
Closing Balance
Balance Payable 50.44 123.50
6 |Gaurav Aggarwal Consultancy fee - 26.00
7 _|Riya Aggarwal Consultancy fee 32.00
8 [Abhinav Goel Consultancy fee 10.00 12.00
9 |Karan Aggarwal Salary 6.00 6.00
o
A




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

36
a.

Income Taxes
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended

Particulars March 31,2024

Year ended
March 31,2023

Current Income Tax

Current year 13.56 211.78
Deferred Tax 2.89 0.29
Tax expense for earlier year (0.72) (1.19)
Total 15.73 210.88
Income taxes that are charged or credited directly in equity

Year ended Year ended

Partienlars March 31,2024

March 31,2023

Deferred tax

Re-measurements of defined benefit plans - (0.38)
Total - (0.38)
Reconciliation of tax expense

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31,2024

March 31,2023

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 46.32 837.87

Enacted income tax rate* 2517% 25.17%
[ncome tax credit calculated at Income tax rate 11.66 210.87

Add/(deduct) impact of :

Expenses not allowable in income tax 2.92 1.10
Expenses allowable in income tax (4.74) (5.68)
Tax expense for earlier year (0.72) (1.19)
Others 6.61 5.78
Tax Expense 1573 210.88

* Tax rate of 25.168% includes corporate tax of 22% , Surcharge 10%and Secondary and Higher Education Cess of 4% on the tax

amount
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018BPTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

37 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

37(4) CLASSIF ON O SINT
As atMarch 31 2024 FVTOCI FVTPL Amortised Cost | Total Carrying Value
A [Financial assets measured at
1 |Fixed Deposit 4.10 410
2 |Trade receivables 87.62 87.62
3 |Cash & cash equivalents 410.05 410.05
4 |Other financial assets-current 59.96 59.96
5 |Other financial assets-non current 584.10 584.10
Total 1,145.83 1,145.83
B |Financial liabilities measured at
1 | Trade payables 18.48 1848
2 | Other financial liability-current 124.95 124.95
Total 14343 143.43
As at March 31 2023 FVTOCI FVTPL Amortised Cost | Total Carrying Value
A |Financial assets measured at
1 [Fixed Deposit 1,105.10 1,105.10
2 |[Tradereceivables - -
3 |Cash & cash equivalents 36642 366.42
4 |0therfinancial assets-current 38.61 3861
5 |Otherfinancial assets-non current 541.26 541.26
Total 2,051.39 2,051.39
B |Financial liabilities measured at
1 | Trade payables 1831 18.31
2 | Lease Liability-current 16.78 16.78
3 | Other financial liability-current 752.71 752.71
Total 787.80 787.80
37(B) FAIR VALUEMEASUREMENTS
0] Financial instrument measured at Amortised Cost
The carrying amount of financial assets and financials labilities measured at amortised cost in the financials statements are a reasonable approximation
of their fair value since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would
eventually be received or settled.
37(C). FINANCIAT,RISK MANAGEMENT- ORIECTIVIFS AND POLICIES
The Company's financial liabilities comprise mainly of trade payable, lease liability and others payable. The company's financial assets comprise mainly
of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, trade receivables and other receivables.
The eamprany by expogure to the tollowing rialo arising from fliancial lust wisents.
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk; and
Markctiisk
a) Risk management framework
The company's board of directors has the overall responsibility for the management of these risks and is supported by Senior Management that advises
on the appropriate financial risk governance framework. The Company has the risk management policies and systems in place and are reviewed
regularly toreflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors
compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Company. The framework seeks to identify, asses and mitigate financial risk in order to minimise potential adverse effects on the company's
financial performance.
b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and
arises from the operating activities primarily (trade receivables) and investing activities including deposits with banks and other corporate deposits.
The company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of financial assets. A default of financial
assets is when there is a Signiant increase in the credit risk which is evaluated based on the business environment. The assets are written off when the
company certain about the non- recovery.

(i) Trade &other receivables:

Customer credit risk is managed based on company's established policy, procedures and controls. The company assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Credit risk isreduced by receiving pre-payments. The company has a well defined sales policy to minimize its risk of credit defaults. Outstading
customer receivables are regularly monitored and assessed. Impairement analysis is performed pased on historical data at each reporting date on an
individual basis. However a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
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(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Amount in (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

<)

d)

37(D)

Expected Credit loss under simplified approach for Trade receivables:

Ageing Asat As at
March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Ageing of gross carrying amount

less than 180 days 87.62 -
181-365 days - a "

Maore than 1 year - -
Gross Carrying amount 87.62 -
Expected Credit loss - -
Net carrying amount 87.62 C

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and other financial instruments :

Credit risk from balances with banks and other financial instruments is managed by Company in accordance with its policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by
the management, and may be updated throughout the year.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other financial instruments has been measured on the 12-month expected credit loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on external credit
ratings of counterparties.

Based on the assessment there is no impairment in the above financial assets.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company’s
treasury department is responsible for maintenance of liquidity, continuity of funding as well as timely settlement of debts. In addition, policies related

to mitigation of risks are overseen by senior management. Management menitors the Company’s net liquidity position on the basis of expected cash
flows vis a vis debt service fulfilment obligation.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Paitleulars LESS than 1 year 1-5 years More thanb Years Lotal
AsatMarch 31 2024

Trade payables 18.48 - - 18.48
Other financial current liability 124.95 - - 124.95
As at March 31, 2023

Lease liability 17.42 - - 17.42
Trade payables 18.31 " < 1831
Other financial current liability 752.71 - - 752.71
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The ebjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters while optimising the return.

i) Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity

The company has no borrowings during the year. Therefore there 1s no interest rate risk.

Capi anagement

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the busincas. The primary objective of Uie Cutipairy's Capilal indudgenent Is W axluilse shareholder's value, The Company manages I caplal and
makes adjustment to it in light of the changes in economic and market conditions.

The Company manages capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. The gearing at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

Particulars Asat nsal
2 March 31 2024 March 31 2023

Borrowings (Current) , ,
Less: Cash and cash equivalents including bank balances (410.05) (366.42)
Total Debt (A) (410.05) (366.42)
Total Equity (B) 1,306.24 1,275.65
Capital and Net debt (C=A+B) 896.19 909.23
Gearing ratio (A/C) -45.75% -40.30%




BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2018PT(C331178)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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¢ s As at As at
L
w0 heaselailing March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
As at beginning of the year 16.78 37.34
Additions
Deletions
Accretion of interest 0.64 1.84
Payments (17.42) (22.40)
As at end of the year - 16.78
Current - 16.78
Non-current - =
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Year ended Year ended
~eases R Ind AS 116 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right of use assets 15.11 20.92
Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.64 1.84
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in 782 351
other expenses)
Total amount recognised in Statement of 23.57 26.27

profit or loss
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BLS KENDRAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74999DL2018PTC331178)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amountin (lakhs) unless otherwise stated

40 Title deeds of Inmovable Property not held in the name of the Company
The company do not have any immovable property which is not held in the name of company.

41 Details of benami property held
The company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company for halding any benami property.

42  Borrowing secured against current asset
The company has not availed any facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets.

43  Wilful defaulter
The company is not declared Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution.

44  Relationship with struck off companies
The company do not have any transactions with struck- off companies under section 248 of Companies Act,2013.

45  Registration of charges or statisfaction with registrar of companies (ROC)
The company do not have any charges or statisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyong the statutory period.

46  Fund Received

The Company have not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

47  Fund Advanced

The Company have notadvanced or loaned or invested funds to any ather person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security ar the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

48  Details of any whistle blower complaints received
The Company have not received any whistle blower complaints during the financial year.

49  Details of Loans given and repayable on demand or without specifying any term or period of repayment
The company has not given loan which is repayable on demand in currentand proceeding financial year.

50 Segment information
Information about primary segment
The company has engaged in the business of providing citizen services under an e-governance projects of punjab Govt. and has only reportable segment in accordance
with IND AS-108 'Operating Segment’. The information relating to this operating segment is reviewed regularly by the Key managerial personnel ("KMP") to make
decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently
applied to record revenue and expenditure in the segment, and are as set out in the significant accounting policies.
Geographical Information .
The company has engaged in the business of providing citizen services under an e-governance projects of punjab Govt of India. Hence doing business within the India.

Revenue from operation

Particulars Year ended Year ended
M "
Withln Indls 4405.42 7.539.42
Qutajde India
4,405.42 7.539.42

Non-Current Assets

Particulars Asat Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within India 696.09 579.79
Outside India - N
696.09 579.79
Information about services rendered by the company
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Sale of services 4,405.42 7,539.42

Major Customers
Thereare no customers that individually contribute for mare than the 10% of the revenues.

51 Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

52 Noadjusting or significant non- adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and date of authorization of these financial statements.
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53 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

54  The agreement between the Company and Punjab State e-Governance Society ("PSeGS"), executed on July 27, 2018, has reached the end of its contract period from
November 27, 2023. This contract was the only major source of revenue for the company. However, the management is making efforts to secure further
contracts/business and is of the view that going concern assumption is not affected.

55 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% at its average net profit for the immediately
preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting
education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee
has been formed by the company as per the Act.

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the vear is Rs. 9.75 Lakhs (March’' 2023 NIL)
b) Amount spent during the vear is Rs. 10 Lakhs (March' 2023 NIL)

56  The Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit ~
trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operating for all relevant transactions recorded in the saftware from May 05, 2023. Although, the accounting software

has inherent limitation, there were no instances of the audit trail feature been tempered.”

57  Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year’s classification.
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